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Speaker BERGSTROM called the meeting to order at 4:00


Speaker BERGSTROM:   Good afternoon.  Welcome to the March 3rd meeting of the Cape Cod Regional Government Assembly of Delegates.  We will call the committee of a whole to Order, and we will begin by having a moment of silence to honor our troops who have died in service to our country and to all those serving our country in the Armed Forces.

Moment of Silence



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Thank you.



And now we will stand for the Pledge of Allegiance.                   

Pledge of Allegiance



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Thank you.



The Clerk will now call the roll.

Roll Call (100.00%): Richard Anderson (8.43% - Bourne), Ronald Bergstrom (2.98% - Chatham), George Bryant (1.54% - Provincetown), Leo Cakounes (5.57% - Harwich), Christopher Kanaga (2.85% - Orleans), Thomas Keyes (9.06% - Sandwich), Marcia King (5.83% - Mashpee), Thomas Lynch (21.52% - Barnstable), Teresa Martin (2.45% - Eastham), John Ohman (7.19% - Dennis), Paul Pilcher (1.24% - Wellfleet), Anthony Scalese (4.54% - Brewster), Fred Schilpp (0.94 – Truro), Charlotte Striebel (11.16% - Yarmouth), and Julia C. Taylor (14.70% - Falmouth)  

Absent (0.00%): 


Ms. THOMPSON:   Mr. Speaker, we have a quorum with 100 percent of the Delegates present.

Committee of the Whole



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Thank you.



I will now need a motion to approve the Calendar of Business.



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  So moved. 



Ms. KING:  So moved.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  So moved and seconded.  No further discussion on that.






All those in favor say “Aye.”  



DELEGATES:  “Aye.”



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Opposed?



(No response.)



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I will now also need a motion to approve the Journal of February 17, 2010.



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  Mr. Speaker, move to approve the Journal of February 17, 2010.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  Do I have a second?



Ms. STRIEBEL:  Second.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  The move has been seconded and there are no issues or corrections.  All those in favor say “Aye.”



DELEGATES:  “Aye.”



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Opposed.



DELEGATES:  (No response.)

Communications from the Board of Regional Commissioners



Speaker BERGSTROM:  And now we will have the Communications from our Board of County Commissioners.  I see the Board is here.

County Budget for FY2011



Commissioner FLYNN:  Good afternoon.  Nice to see you all.  I think my comments will be very brief because I know that you have Andy Gottlieb on your agenda for a report on your wastewater collaborative.  And I’m sure he’ll have a lot to say that will interest you as well.  



I think this week the Commissioners worked more subtle on the budget to refine a presentation to you for March 17th.  We see your budget as being a strategic budget that is put together to meet certain goals and objectives that the Commissioners have for 2011.  And so we will have that presentation two weeks from today.

Open Cape Stimulus Funds



Commissioner FLYNN:  I think the important thing we want - - and you all know about it now - - is the stimulus funding that the Open Cape received in order to make that a possibility.  And of course Teresa is here, and she’s very much a part of that, a member of the board of directors.  



So it was really a great day yesterday to know that Cape Cod is finally recognized as a place, as a place of importance, and as a place that can make things happen and get things done, and I think us being able to receive that money is incredible.  And the impacts of it will be far into the future, and I think forever will change how people live and work on Cape Cod without any question.  We were delighted.  



And I know there is a reception being planned.  I believe it might take place, well, we are not sure yet because Senator Kerry wants to be here.  And so we hope that you will all come and share in that.  At that time too, I believe Dan Gallagher and the Board will explain the timelines that are required according to the grant, the funding.  I think certain things have to happen within three years and everything has to happen in five years.  



So this opportunity has huge impacts for the towns and schools throughout the Cape.  The ability for towns to be able to communicate with one another and that’s police departments and fire departments included.  That can have huge impacts on how perhaps even dispatch might be done.  And also with the libraries.  



I mean all the public services on the Cape will have the opportunity to exchange information and Teresa can probably talk more about that than I can.  If you want to, when we are finished if you want to give her that opportunity.  So that’s my report.

Anyone else?



Commissioner DOHERTY:  I just want to add to what Pat said.  All this began several years ago when the EDC gave 50,000 dollars as seed money for this.  So these things do not happen in an instant.  In the public sector activity, there’s planting that goes on.  There’s support and there’s nurturing.  There’s steps forward and steps back, and the outcome while it’s grand is not one of these overnight successes.  



It takes a lot of work and a lot of energy and a lot of commitment and a lot of people in order to make it happen.  I think that all the Commissioners are proud to be a partner in this, and we will continue to watch it through your Assembly member to make sure everything goes the way it’s supposed to.  



Commissioner FLYNN:  I am just so glad you said that about the EDC because so often people say, Well, how does the EDC spend its money, and how do you know whether the money that was spent really was successful and really allowed something to happen?  

And here’s one case where that 50,000 in seed money produced a whole lot of other money like 32 million dollars.



Commissioner LYONS:  Okay.  As they said, I’ll join in on the back patting.  But first of all, I just want to say that this was a great example of a collaborative between private and public sectors.  I do - - my hat it off to Dan Gallagher, who first identified this seed when he went to the four C’s, Cape Cod Community College.  



And he was able to lay out a plan and to see a vision, and he got the right people together, including Teresa Martin and Gary Dalious down in Provincetown or Truro and numerous others who were on the board.  And they really were very methodical in the - - not only did the County help and see that vision at the beginning, but we were there in the end and in this last year really helping them push this across the finish line by partnering with them.



And I think it’s a great opportunity for the County as well.  I think this really has - - it’ll have a great impact on all kinds of economic development that’ll be sensitive to our environment.  This was a project that was identified in the SEDS program and that went before the federal boards there.  So that gave it a little boost.  



And anything that we contributed we were happy to do, but it was a great team and really an amazing effort that took about four and a half years I would say.  And it’s a great thing.  So I’m looking forward to all of the wonderful consequences of this.  

NSTAR Insecticides Spraying



Commissioner LYONS:  I do also just want us to make a report particularly on the Outer Cape, but now it is really being viewed as a regional thing is the NSTAR spray of insecticides and that sort of thing and onto the trees to keep the foliage down over their power lines.  And that is a very big deal on the Outer Cape because you have more - - it’s all on the National Seashore.  It abuts peoples’ private properties, and it effects their well and et cetera.  



So this has been an outcry from the public.  We met - - Paul Niedzwiecki and myself, the municipal, Municipal Co-Operation.  The four towns that are working in a regional way together, and they expressed their real concern that this has been kind of been kicking around for six months.  They have talked to people in the State House.  So we went back and discussed how we could do this.  So Paul - - in the last three weeks, he was really able to pull things together.  



We got the people from NSTAR together.  We discussed a plan of how we could go forward and maybe having a moratorium this year until maybe - - what the Commission has offered to do is to sort of map out where that well area is to try to help NSTAR identify where the crucial areas are that would affect public health.  And what are the alternatives that could be more health - - not to be detrimental to our health.  What are the other insecticides and herbicides that could be used? 



So tomorrow we have a meeting with the Senate President.  The delegation is being pulled together, members from NSTAR.  I’ll be there along with Paul Niedzwiecki and several others.  So it is moving forward, and I think that we will be able to at least get this moratorium in place and then figure out a good plan on that.  



So I just want to give you an update on that.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Anybody have any questions for the Commissioners?

  

Leo?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Just one comment on the NSTAR spraying thing.  I’ll put my farm bureau hat on now so everyone knows what I’m talking about.  



I know - - and I’ve gotten a lot of calls from people concerned about the spraying applications, but one thing I would like your board to know, and you to know, and maybe you could share it with the Cape Cod Commission also is that there are a number of certified organic cranberry farms, not just bogs, but certified organic farmers on Cape, one of which is actually a County farm.  



He owns 60-plus acres over there.  I know the whole piece is 90, but 60 plus of it is certified organic.  He had a situation because he has the railroad that runs down through the center of that and as many of you may or may not know but when someone sprays pesticides within 100 feet of our farm it affects my certification.  



And I’ll put it on me personally now.  I have 33 acres in Harwich, which is about 1100 feet of it runs right up abutting to the power line.  My farm is certified not only in the USA, but we are certified in Japan and in England.  It’s a very costly process.  It’s a process where my books are looked at.  



My applications are looked at, and I could lose that certification if, in fact, NSTAR was to spray a  non-certified organic herbicide under those power lines because they run about 15 feet from the edge of my cranberry bog.  And if I lose my certification - - and what happens is you lose the certification once the crop is picked and sent in.  



So all of a sudden now the value of my crop went from - - I could lose over a third of the value of the crop.  I certainly can’t sustain a hit like that, and I know that I will freely speak for Mr. Friary, who I don’t think is dealing with NSTAR, but he certainly dealt with the railroad, which again affected him greatly.  The railroad was through negotiations and sprayed up to his property and did not spray through the County farm, and he was able to sustain his certification.  



Over the past years - - I’ve had this particular farm for over 13 years now.  And I’ve been able to negotiate with NSTAR personally.  When they show up, they usually ask me.  You know, I do a lot of the pruning myself for them, and the guys pretty much just jump over me and go to the other side of the lake, which is fine.  But now I’m a little concerned because they are bringing in some outside contractors, people who aren’t even from the state.  



So it’s just one more facet to add to your argument, which I don’t think should go under the screen so much because this is not trying to say what they are using is going to pollute anything.  It’s not pointing fingers at NSTAR.  It’s not saying that they are doing a bad job.  It’s not saying that they are not licensed, and it’s not the proper application.  



All I am saying is if they use good standard practices, and they use approved pesticides or herbicides to kill the weeds, I lose my accreditation.  If they follow the law, I still lose my accreditation.  And I think that’s just not fair.



Commissioner LYONS:  No, I agree.  And thank you for sharing that because I will bring that forward and you were saying within 100 feet of your farm if there is spraying - -



Mr. CAKOUNES:  I have to report everything that is used within 100 feet of my property boundaries.  Not exactly where I’m planting from, but from my property boundaries.  I actually report what my neighbor is using.  He’s got a cranberry bog.  But he’s over 100 feet away, and he’s also downstream from me.



Commissioner LYONS:  And he’s not an organic farmer.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  He is not an organic farmer.



Commissioner LYONS:  And you use herbicides yourself.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  I do.  Fertilizers and pesticides.



Commissioner LYONS:  And they are all approved or are in the organic market.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  They are certified organic, yes.



Commissioner LYONS:  And what Leo is saying is correct.  They are using herbicides that have been deemed viable by the state.  And they only go by what the state has approved.  So this is a - - and those are the other    people who are going to be at the meeting, are the Department of Agriculture and - - you know, the acronym is agriculture and something.  They will also be there.  



So I will make that argument and maybe that they should start looking into the organic herbicides for a multiple set of reasons not just peoples’ wells, which is very important, but also economics here on the Cape especially with more of the organic farmers.  It’s not as though we are that big.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Again, I think my point is that it directly affects an organic farmer if they are within 100 feet.



Commissioner LYONS:  And that will be stated.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  If they want to do it right, you know, they can do it like they do it in Vermont, and they basically run sheep and goats under the power lines.



(Laughter.)



Commissioner LYONS:  Okay.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Not that it would make me happy on Cape Cod.



Commissioner LYONS:  Thank you, Leo, for sharing that with me.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Are there any other questions for the Commissioners?



Tom?

Homeless Grant Monitoring



Mr. LYNCH:  Not for today because I know you might not be prepared for this, but I’d be interested in an update on the homeless grant that we overtook the monitoring of.  I know that they passed a recent - - one of the goals and objectives was to produce basically an 800 Number so there is a 24 hour response to homeless situations.  



And I believe that’s Countywide, but it would be interesting to maybe see what sort of milestone goals were there, and how we are meeting them.  And I assume that there will be administrative runs carried over into the budget so we’ll see part of that. And so I don’t need that today, but at some point maybe Beth could put together a report or something.



Commissioner LYONS:  If I could just state yesterday - - it feels like I was 100 years ago.  



Yesterday we met with the Main Street Steering Committee, and she did present - - we presented the whole layout of the program; its goals, what we reached, and the success we have reached.  And we have about another six months left of that grant.  And we explained everything in detail so that is all set up, and she will be happy to go.  



She did state that there is an - - Estella Fritzenger is assisting her with this as is Ellen with the roll out of that number.  And while I’m here it is a good opportunity to be able to say that it has been brought forward as an emergency number, a crisis number.  And it really is a number that if someone is facing homelessness that evening, this is the number to call.  It is not a number for various other services.  



It is for that very acute crisis.  So I think part of the problem and some of the glitch in getting that rolled out - - not rolled out formally and with lots of press is that they are still trying to work out that glitch.  And also what is the best word to call it?  What is the best thing to call it so it can convey exactly what it is and not be having people call this number for information that they really cannot give?  



It’s really for a crisis of homelessness.  So I will mention it to Beth.  I will see her tomorrow, and I will mention that the Assembly would like to have her here, and I’d be happy to do that.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Anything else for the Commissioners?



George?



Mr. BRYANT:  The spraying of herbicides.  20 years ago when Susan Walker represented Sandwich in the Assembly, she was very much involved in herbicide spraying and the prevention of it if possible.  Do you know - -



Commissioner LYONS:  I’m sorry.  I didn’t hear.  Well, according to Delegate Cakounes he is saying that it does.  So I will ask about that tomorrow as well.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  I didn’t hear the question.



Commissioner LYONS:  George was asking if the railroad does still spray.



Mr. BRYANT:  What railroad are you talking about?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Yes, the railroad has started spraying again.  They stopped for a number of years.  And now they have started the proceedings again.  And they went through last I believe it was July or maybe late August.  They went from Barnstable all the way down to the bridges.



And I don’t know the name of the railroad, but the people I dealt with were from Maine and New Hampshire and executive people who were in charge of the spraying.  It had nothing to do with the railroad.  They contracted out.



Mr. BRYANT:  The railroad starts in Dennis.  Doesn’t it?



Commissioner LYONS:  I will bring that up - -



Mr. BRYANT:  Susan was very active in that, and there may be an old Ordinance from this Assembly on that.  I’m not sure.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Anything else.



Hearing nothing.  Thank you very much.  



Commissioner LYONS:  Thank you.

Andrew Gotlieb – Final Report of the Cape Cod Water Protection Collaborative Review Committee



Speaker BERGSTROM:  And now we’ll bring in Andrew Gotlieb from the Cape Cod Waste Water Protection Collaborative.



Andrew.



Mr. GOTLIEB:   It’s nice to have a chance to talk to you, and I apologize for two weeks ago.  I was supposed to be here two weeks ago, but I got waylaid up in Boston.  So I was sorry not to make it.  



What I’d like to do is just to give you an overview of the report that was done by the review committee that was designated to look at the effectiveness of the collaborative.  Just to give you a very quick overview of what the findings were and subsequently the actions that the Commissioners have taken in response to that report.  



And then remain available to answer any questions on those matters or anything else or concerns you might have relative to the collaborative.  The Ordinance that created the collaborative and mandated a review of the effectiveness of the collaborative is in its fourth year.  So mid to late last summer the Commissioners appointed an eight-member committee that I chaired. 

 

It was comprised of a broad represented group.  There was somebody from town officials, somebody from the collaborative, Mr. Bryant from the Assembly, some selectmen and some people that have had some interest in the activities of the group in the past.  We pulled everyone together and sort of looked at what the collaborative has done, what the collaborative was intended to do when it was established.  



And I think perhaps most interestingly what the collaborative should be doing over the next several years in order to address the challenges that are currently concerning the County and towns.  Because, quite frankly, what was useful and effective in the first four years of what we were doing in the beginning was fine, but we need to meet the needs our towns have on a going forward basis.  



So the group met three times over the course of August, September and into October and came up with a report and filed that report with the Commissioners.  The basic findings of that report were that in many respects the collaborative has been a pretty successful enterprise in that one of its primary charges was to address the affordability of waste-water management on the Cape.  



And while that the numbers that you see continue to be somewhat staggering for towns to deal with, the collaborative was instrumental in establishing a financing vehicle through the methods of the SRF program that provided a zero percent interest option for funding of projects.  And at the time it was passed, it had the potential - - someone had realized at this point frankly - - of providing about a billion dollars over a ten-year period at zero interest to Cape towns.



And that had they pursued those projects and that financing under the conventional program the way it existed two years ago it would have cost roughly a quarter of a billion dollars more in interest payments then would be charged under the enhanced program for this project.  



So in that regard, the collaborative has been pretty successful in providing towns on the Cape with an opportunity to minimize to the extent possible the cost of financing these projects for their residents.  And in other areas the focus of the collaborative has been in involved in public outreach and public education areas.  And I think the general view is that the efforts of the collaborative have been successful in that.  



However, there’s sort of the recognition that you can never get enough information out there.  There is always a need to continue to provide an increase in public awareness and better information to the public.  Just to review, the collaborative has done - - I, quite frankly, have lost count of the local meetings we’ve done either before boards of selectmen, finance committees, waste water management committees, military management committees and also interested third party groups, watershed associations, non-profit environment interest groups, bankers, and real estate folks.  



We even went to the annual meeting of Cape Cod assessors - - not assessors - - land surveyors.  So we tried to sort of hit as many of those groups as possible.  We talked to all of them and generally speaking people felt that that work was done reasonably well.  We have done some publications distributed both through the towns to town clerk offices with brochures.



Those were available in large quantities, tens of thousands through stickers in offices so when people go get their beach or dump stickers or other business with the town clerk, they had opportunity to obtain those materials.  We distributed a version of that through the Cape Cod Times two years ago on the Fourth of July weekend and that was pretty well received.  So that work was going on reasonably effectively.  



And we developed a much improved website, the CapeKeepers.org site that provides, most recently, a single point of access to all waste water management planning and information that is available to anyone who is seeking the plans.  So you can go to that one site and get an entry right effectively to all printed documentation that has been published by any one of the towns that’s working with the waste water management.  



I think that’s been a useful tool for those people that have been curious about what’s happened in other communities and curious about what’s happening in their community and had some difficulty in finding that information.  All that said, plenty more needs to be done.  You know, every time you go to a town you find somebody who needs or is interested in more information than they feel already available to them.  And so we will continue to provide that. 



So I think there is a general feeling that the public outreach work is working reasonably well.  The area frankly that the committee found that the collaborative needed to do more was in the area of pursuing and helping towns develop regional waste water management solutions.  



Now, when I say regional, I mean reasonably small.  So not one big plant somewhere off of Route 6 somewhere that takes the waste water from the whole Cape and treats it and puts it somewhere else.  But regional in the sense that we have a number of water bodies on the Cape that - - in fact, almost every significant estuary on the Cape has a watershed boundary and therefore gets nitrogen inputs from more than one community.  



So regional in the sense of facilitating the collective solutions between adjoining towns that share a water resource or contribute to the water quality problems in that resource and getting those towns to work together to come up with a joint solution, whatever the form of that joint solution might be.  It can lead to a joint treatment facility.  



It can lead to an agreement under which one community bears somewhat more of the sewering and somewhat more of the hosting of the facilities and the other community makes a financial contribution to that community.  There are a number of different formulations that that can take, but generally speaking the feeling was that Cape towns were tending towards following the well worn path of the Cape where everyone does their own thing.  



And that was actually leaning to decreases potentially in talks for dealing with the problem and solutions that were not necessarily be as effective as they would otherwise be.  And so from that conclusion the committee then came to doing its recommendations which is where the controversy was inserted into the process.  



And in feeling that there was a need to emphasize the regional aspects more heavily we had a long and I think, frankly, a very interesting conversation with ourselves about well, how do you fix that?  



We have got right now 15 members appointed to board representing each town, two members representing the County Commissioners.  The individuals representing for their towns well they actually represent their towns.  And their allegiance necessarily or their orientation isn’t necessarily towards a water body or in looking at their neighbor.



It is to protect what’s understood at the time to be the best interest of their community.  We had a very interesting discussion as to whether that formulation can lead itself to effectively dealing with these questions and whether or not it made more sense to have a governing body that came to the table with the orientation towards regionalization.  



And ultimately the recommendation of the committee was for an alteration of the structure of the collaborative.  Currently, the collaborative is a 17 member governing board and is supported by a five member steering committee.  And what the recommendation was to effectively make the governing board more of an advisory board to provide governing structure.



 And that would be seven members appointed by the County Commissioners and would focus on regionalization.  And that was the recommendation that came in and went to the Assembly - - or to the County Commissioners.  There was general but not unanimous agreement on the recommendation.  Seven of the eight members supported the recommendation and one did not.  



There was a lot of discussion about whether or not the taken of the town representatives out of the governance role were undermining or changing the nature of the deal, disenfranchising the towns, and basically putting too much authority in the hands of folks that came to the table with a regional perspective but didn’t necessarily hold the town’s best interest at heart.  



It’s a fair conversation to have, frankly.  So that became largely the primary thing that people focused on.  The other element, before I jump to the next step of the report, was the recognition of the fact that regardless of how you felt about the governing structure that it was important now for the collaborative and the County as a whole to begin talking less about regionalization as the end and more about regionalization as a means to an end.  



The end being improving water quality and restoration of environmental, aesthetic, and public use values of our water bodies and that the thing that gets people charged up isn’t to get up in the morning and think about how they are going to regionalize.  They can get up in the morning and think about what am I going to do to protect my water body?  



People have a visceral connection to clean water.  People get excited about doing things.  You can get people to do some pretty crazy things and get up at 4:00 in the morning on a lousy day and go out and do a water sample if they think it’s contributing to the ultimate protection or restoration of a particular water body.  If you say I want you to get up at 4:00 in the morning and do something so the two towns can collaborate on waste water solutions, they are not going to do that for you.  



So the language about what we are doing and why we are doing it really I think it was determined that that language needed to change.  We needed to talk more about what it is that we were trying to protect.  So there is - - and people don’t like this term, but I came up with it so I will stick by it - - more of a placed based orientation to the work that we are doing.



Talk less about methods and more about the outcomes.  So we are going to do something on the County basis to help improve Pleasant Bay, Waquoit Bay, you know, insert your favorite water body, and that then begins to get people at the municipal level and the general public a little bit more conscious of and bought into what it is you are asking them to do, whether it is to go out and change their behavior, whether you are asking them to spend some money, or partner with the adjoining community.  



And so we sort of recommend a change in the orientation of how we talk about around priority water bodies and recommended that the County begin to designate certain water bodies as a priority.  So that prioritization concept, the talking about water bodies as significant, and changing the structure of the governing board were the three main things that came out of the recommended report.  



We presented it to the Commissioners.  We had good conversations with the Commissioners about it.  The Commissioners decided to put that report and its recommendations out for what they call a comment process.  That was relatively thorough.  And we got a lot of comment.  And the comments, if I might, were sort of summarized this way.  We like the idea.  

And we as towns are in agreement that place based is important.  



Again, a lot of people didn’t like the way it was phrased, but, you know, protecting water bodies is important to us and we are in support of that.  We are - - every town responded to us and made a written commitment in expression of their interest in working with their neighbors to solve common water quality problems, which if nothing else came out of the review process.  That in of itself was of enormous value.  



Because it was really the first time that I had seen in an organized methodical fashion we had towns stepping forward and saying we really are interested in working with our neighbors, and we recognize that we need to solve these problems jointly.  That’s a huge step forward for us, okay.

 

And the third sort of theme of that was, We don’t like the changes to the governing board, and we think it’s important that the town selectmen continue to be the ones to appoint the representatives to the governing board, and we think that it invests the town with some connection to and responsibility for the work that’s being done by the group. 

 

And I think, frankly, they didn’t want to see concentration of authority, of appointing authority, and not knowing who those people were going to be to an outside agency, in this case the Commissioners.  And so I would say generally that from every town we heard from we heard two things.  We like regionalization, and we don’t like centralized appointment of the members of the governing board.  



So with that in mind, the action taken by the Commissioners at the meeting in the middle of December on the 15th or 16th, somewhere in there, was to accept the report of the review committee, to formally adopt the notion of sort of orienting around placed based, and they charged the collaborative to come back with a set of recommendations on which places should get priority and what that priority might mean for those areas that sort of designated.  



And they voted not to make any recommended changes to you in the form of a Revised Ordinance that would change the governing structure that we set up with the governing board.  So that recommendation was put aside.  So there has been no change.  There is no change contemplated at this point of the governing board structure, but we are moving ahead with the orientation towards placed based.  



And there was a statement from the Commissioners about the importance of regionalization.  Neighboring communities working with one another to solve these water quality problems, and it appointed a tactical team which is comprised of myself, George Heufelder, Paul Niedzwiecki to govern these particular issues, and to sort of work together to come up with what are the tactics?  



What are the - - you know, the governing board of the collaborative still sort of looks at the strategic alignment of what we ought to be doing, but they are really looking to the three operating department heads to say tactically speaking what are we going to be doing to support and focus around these regional sites that we designated as important.  



So the Commissioners about two weeks or two and a half weeks ago sent a letter to each one of the 15 towns thanking them for their comment and letting them know that the input that they offered in the public hearing process, public comment process, was heard and acted upon in a form of rejecting the review committee’s recommendation that we change the governing board and announce what I just went through with you, which is the intent to prioritize some watersheds and to leave the governing board structure unchanged.  



Within that letter, however, there was a recommendation from the Commissioners to the individual towns that given the nature of the type of problems we are confronting with the collaborative right now, largely the methods of financing these large waste water solutions that every town is grappling with, and some of the legal issues that arise in implementation, whether it is working out municipal agreements and what the terms of those are going to be, or how you structure the financing that we felt, or the Commissioners as a body felt that it was especially important to make sure that selectmen were fully engaged in those discussions.  



And they made a recommendation to each of the board that in reviewing their appointments to the governing board that they consider appointing a member from their board of selectmen or town councilors, as in the case of Barnstable, as their representative to the collaborative.  And that message has gone out to the towns.  They can do with it what they wish, frankly.  



You know, the Commissioners do not control who the appointees are.  That remains the purview of the local appointing authorities.  So they can take that information with the recommendations and do with it what they like.  Most of the membership of the collaborative has terms expiring sometime this spring.  So over the normal course of affairs towns’ board’s of selectmen will be looking at who their appointees are anyway.  



So this just throws another factor into this discussion.  That letter has gone out, and I haven’t heard anything back from the towns.  I don’t know whether you have or not.  So I don’t know what they are going to do about it, but that’s where we are.  As I said, in the process now the governing board meets this coming Wednesday.  



I’ve prepared a recommendation for them on a handful of sites, water bodies that have been evaluated for a designation priority.  I think we will be making - - I expect them to vote one way or the other on that recommendation, and they will be going to the County Commissioner before the end of this month.  



And with that I’ll stop and be happy to answer any of your questions.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  Do we have any questions for Andy Gottlieb?



Julia?



Ms. TAYLOR:  This question may be impossible to answer.  But having served for 20-plus years on a regional body but with a representative from every town, I think I am familiar with the potential problem of acting regionally or not.  



Do you see the recommendation to make that change - - I understand it’s over - - but I’m just curious whether you saw that more of as a problem where people really weren’t acting very regionally, or was it more simply time consuming and a little distracting because you had a larger and slightly town effective people - - does that?



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Well, I can only speak for myself.  And I will.



Ms. TAYLOR:  Yes.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  I saw it as a real problem and not as an issue of it is just harder.  I just, frankly, didn’t see the orientation was there.  I didn’t see that necessarily uniform degree of commitment to that.  I thought people came to the table appropriately and willingly vote the idea of looking out for the best interests of their towns.  



Now, the irony of that as we learn more and more about these water bodies and what their needs are and how some of the management solutions are going to play themselves out is that all the data is coming back and saying it is more cost effective and will result in both monetary savings and less infrastructure being built if the towns partner together. 



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Julia, a follow up.



Ms. TAYLOR:  Thank you for that.  I appreciate your perspective very much.  Now, I worry is that this recommendation becomes the appointees - -  I wouldn’t see necessarily progress sort of breaking down that approach because, gee, if you are an elected official from a town, I think you are even more likely to be interested in serving from that perspective.  



You know I’m not very oriented that way.  So I really feel that having heard this presentation we may want to get into this discussion at the local level, and if it’s going to be the selectmen making the appointment and this recommendation that one of them do it, I don’t - - based on what he’s saying I don’t think that’s a good idea.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Let me give you an idea - -



Ms. TAYLOR:  I’ll probably try to keep up on this locally.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  I think this is something, and I think the Commissioners voted on this saying, you know, we are going to leave it alone for now.  We think we need to engage the selectmen more, but we are going to keep and eye on this and I think that, you know, it is something that bears watching.  The fiscal realities of this are quite plain.  



When you cut away all the rhetoric and all the reasons why, you know, it is harder.  I don’t want to take somebody else’s - - what do you mean I have to take somebody else’s waste water into my town?  You must be out of you mind.  The cost savings of regionalization are so compelling that, I think, when you have a selectmen at the table and sort of get passed the hump of you need to do something.  And you can do it, and it’ll cost you this if you go alone, which you can do.  



Or you can do it, and it’ll cost you “X” minus 20 percent if you do it with a neighboring town, I think the economics of it are going to make it really hard for somebody to come up with a rational defensible argument as to why they are not going to do it.  And I think it becomes - - in some respects it’s harder for the political person even though they are there and they sit on the board of selectmen for their town.  



It’s pretty hard for that person to argue for reasons that aren’t transparently inappropriate why they are going to go to the more expensive solution.



Ms. TAYLOR:  But if I may - -



Speaker BERGSTROM:  You may.



Ms. TAYLOR:  Are they ever going to look?  Is the collaborative going to be given them enough guidance to make it crystal clear about this difference in cost because otherwise I don’t see them starting down the road of getting the two prices - -



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Well, I will say this that the regional waste water management plan that we were charged with coming up with and that part of the Ordinance is pretty far down the road.  You’ll be hearing about that later this spring.  It talks about the regional view being the presumptive approach that one needs to take.  



That becomes important in the legislation provides the financing relief mandates that where there is a regional waste water management plan that the County, where that applies, has to sign off on and tell the state whether or not the local plan is consistent with the regional plan.  So in order to get access to the zero interest financing the town is going to have to overcome the presumptiveness about regionalization.  



So if you are not serious about it, you could do it, but you are going to do it on your own nickel.  And I think that is going to take - - for those towns that are early on in the process now, I think it gives them - - they have got very fair warning that they need to look at that issue on a straight up basis.  For those that have, you know, gone further down the road in that regard, they may need to take a little bit of a step back and look at it again in order to get that certification.  



And, frankly, to not overly purview the recommendation, the priority watersheds are all going to go around and around regional situations and are intended to provide town that are moving down the road the opportunity to pivot a little bit and adjust their thinking.  So that if they don’t go regional, they will have met the burden of being able to say there were legitimate reasons why we didn’t and we gave it a straight up, fair analysis.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Tom?



Mr. LYNCH:  I know you’ve been getting around to Barnstable a couple of times, and we certainly appreciate your experience and perspective that you bring on this matter.  



The key that I think most communities are going to need is going to be around educating the public to kind of catch up where those who have been planning this for a long time and applying for funding and arranged new projects to why this is important.  Because we might get attacked on the science of it.  We might get attacked certainly on the cost of it and who’s going to pay.  We might get attacked on we haven’t told people enough about it.  



All those types of issues that come up through a public hearing process, which you alluded to, too, where people will come and say there is access to websites, but I still need more information.  And whether it’s Barnstable or Chatham, or Falmouth, in some form they are going to need additional information.  



I think the more the County can speak with one voice to those areas where there is room for the town to pick what it wants to do - - the town may want to do a combination of a large waste water facility plan and some smaller waste water facilities and maybe even some alternative, you know, septic systems in certain parts of town or do nothing in certain areas.  And we may choose to do a different form of how we fund.  



Some people may want a fifty percent betterment, fifty percent on the tax rolls.  Some people may want a different perspective.  And I’m not saying the County has to choose those sorts of things but anytime we are in one of these battles, and we are being confronted with the science or the cost on anything, anything the County can do either at the meeting or at the table where these decisions are being made would be enormously helpful.  



And I think whether you are delivering that message in Orleans or in Barnstable hopefully it’ll get picked up as the same message.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Well, you know - -



Mr. LYNCH:  It’s education.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  We’ve talked about that, and I think we are trying to get out to as many as possible and part of that tactic we are sort of talking about is giving the message throughout the County, and giving the message through the Commission, and giving the message from the collaborative.  



So when anyone of us is out doing something interactive and providing a consistent level of information that points down from the right direction - - and not to jump the gun a little bit on budget discussions, but our Fiscal ’11 budget does have a specific provision in it to provide higher level of municipal service and outreach both in the areas of financial methodologies and engineering review, which is the two places that we’ve seen towns, boards of selectmen or town councilors get caught up on the rocks lately, where people are saying, you know, you cooked the books on the finances or your engineering review didn’t look at things on an apples to apples basis.  



And we are looking for some resources to enable the County to come in and play the role of the honest broker and ensure the boards of selectmen and taxpayers in those communities that analyses were done and the financing methodologies that have been evaluated and looked at meet the professional standards of the day for that subject matter.  



And that this objective decision that the town makes about whether or not it wants to do a fifty-fifty betterment, sixty-forty, or whatever it might be are political and financial decisions that the town might make, but the basis upon which the questions have been asked were legitimate and that it gives some third party distance to the accusation that, you know, your town staff wanted this outcome.  



They picked it twelve years ago, and they’ve done everything they can to orient the discussion so that the outcome that comes out of the process is what they pre-selected.  And we say that - - having the County to be able to step in and say, Well no actually what they did was methodical and appropriate degree of standard that we would expect or, you know, we think it proves it’s an option way too early if there is some reason to go back and look at that.  



So we are hoping that the County, you know, with a very modest funding that we asked for this coming year to provide that service will be able to be in a position to provide that to the towns.  And, quite frankly, as we’ve begun to talk about it, I presented it as part of the budget description to the Commissioner, I’ve already had several towns call me and say, “How do we get some of that?”  



So the waiting list is already queuing up for that because I think it is pretty obvious where boards of selectmen feel like they are vulnerable, you know, they get - - they create these committees.  They go off and they do work for a short term and a long term period of time.  And then they are handed a set of recommendations, and then the board of selectmen without knowing all the background, because that’s why you have the committee do it, ends up being in the position of arbiters of various and hard felt accusations about how somebody oriented this thing to get an outcome that they wanted and you are in a very difficult position to sort through that.  



So I think if we can step back and play that role of saying you might not like the outcome, but the way it got there was legitimate.  That can do a lot to relieve some of the burden that the board of selectmen are feeling right now that is costing everybody lot of time, creating a lot of hard feelings and setting the whole effort somewhat backwards.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Leo?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Ironically, this came up at the Harwich Selectmens’ meeting the past Monday night, and I will tell you that I think they understood the letter that was sent to them.  There was a lot of discussion about how they should look at the appointee that’s going to be in a position to move things forward and kind of spur the discussion.  And, you know, not only that but to bring back to the board of selectmen a reporting to them of what is going on.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  I mean, the irony there is that Harwich actually does have a selectman as their appointee.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Well, I was going to say that.  Larry Valentine to his credit was appointed before he was a selectman.  And last Monday night they reappointed him because his appointment was up in February.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Right.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  So they do now have selectmen, but it was the same gentleman appointed originally.  For one thing, I kind of listened to them talk about it, and I’m not sure if they understood it.  I know you had talked about the Tech Committee and about the placed base scenarios of how you are looking at things.  



Do you think you are going to create small subcommittees or small tech courses to really move forward with these designated areas as opposed to having the entire group move forward on it?



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Well, part of the due diligence that has to do with the steering committee was to come up with a list of recommended potential sites and before putting it in front of the full group they wanted me to go visit each one of the towns involved and say this is what we are thinking about.  



Does this make sense for your community?  Are you interested in it?  And what form would it make sense?  I can tell you that across the board the reaction has been positive, and I tried to meet with typically the person who represents their town on the governing board, the town manager, and at least one selectman and the response has been uniformly positive. 



The “this is how you could best work with us” has been different in every town I’ve talked to, which is fine.  So what the method one would use to interact with this group of towns and then another one may use to interact with another group of towns - - you know, one town has a citizen advisory committee process and they said, you know, you should plug into that.  



Another one said, you know, we are trying to broker an intra-municipal agreement between three towns.  We feel like we need a disinterested third-party to act as a convener and sort of a facilitator of that, and it would be really helpful if you played that role.  So in some cases we might have a little subcommittee that works with adjoining towns and other cases.  They’ve asked me to play a specific individual role.  So it’s going go vary.  



And part of the write up that I’m doing for the governing board next week is saying by recommending these three and the role we play and the way we do it would work this way here, this way here, and that way there.  And all three are going to be different.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Follow up.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Yes, just to follow up.  You hit the nail on the head with Harwich’s relationship with their community because at last night’s meeting - - on Monday night’s meeting - - again we have a water quality task force in town which, you know, has brought forward a number of articles to town meeting.  



And they have been funded 500,000 dollars two years ago.  And subsequently this May I think they will be looking for an additional 300,000 dollars.  And they are looking at the estuaries and they are looking at impacts on the lakes and ponds.  I forget what the number is, but I think it was either eleven or twelve ponds and half of them are in Brewster.  And those ponds still run through Hinckley’s Pond and eventually into the Herring River.  I think you are headed in the right way basically.  



We need to get the people who are in charge, the people who are doing the good work - - and certainly Harwich has some really good volunteers.  And obviously the town has stepped up because they voted to put this money forward, but we really need to open up the negotiations between the two towns because it seems ludicrous to stop at the borders.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Right.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  So I think you are headed the right way.  I think the placed base scenario is a good method and, unfortunately, I think you are going to have to do it different in each town.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Yes, but that makes it interesting. 



Speaker BERGSTROM:  George?



Mr. BRYANT:  The whole point of this is to comply with the Clean Water Act of 1972 in the fifteen towns on the Cape.  The difference between the towns here and the situation that developed in Boston is that we don’t have an MWRA.  I led two tours of the Deer Island sewage treatment and pumping station.  The last one was ten years ago in February.  So I try to inform myself about this.  



What the County has to do really is make this attractive to the towns.  And how are you going to do that if you don’t have a mandate like the MWRA?  I think you personally have done a great job.  I’ve seen you on television and going around to the towns.  I’ve heard that you’ve tried to help them, but the towns seem to be determined to do it on their own.  There is nothing we can do about that.  



Chatham is talking about 300 million dollars.  Falmouth is 600 million and according to Mary Pat, they have a wonderful group of people on their board that is dealing with this.  Mashpee is thinking about 500 million dollars and Orleans is 150 million dollars.  That’s over a billion and a half dollars right there.  



We have been told that it will cost between two and three billion dollars to effectively sewer the Cape over the long run.  It’s going to be a lot more than that.  Children who have not yet been born will be working on this system.



(Laughter.)



Mr. BRYANT:  Provincetown had the famous exploding sewer system.  In Truro, it’s going to require a sewer system on Beach Point, South Truro and the border of the Herring River with Wellfleet.  And then Wellfleet to the Herring River and downtown and to Eastham along the bay side.  Brewster along the bay side as well.  



Harwich, there is a lot of ponds and it of course has the area south of 28, like Dennis does where you have a very high water table.  You can anticipate that whole area will be sewered in at some point starting from the Dennis line all the way to Chatham.  Yarmouth has a lot of low areas.  Barnstable of course is continually sagged up.  



The Stewart’s Creek discussion this morning that’s going on now was only one small part of it.  Sandwich has a lot of ponds, and there is a whole bay side area which is very low.  And ultimately, that part of Sandwich will need sewering.  And Bourne of course ships sewage into Wareham where it is treated.  And so I don’t know Bourne that well but Bournedale especially up near the Herring Pond area where it abuts the sewer.  



You can’t force these people to work together unless the Conservation Law Foundation comes in and there’s a push to work together.  I see a need for you to working parallel with the towns ideally and not trying to supplement them because they are not going to buy it.  They don’t have to do the regional.  It’s town by town.  And I think - - of course by adding the selectmen to the board they can offer more.



We had an experience in the County on the advisory board to detail the budget at one point.  And towards the end of that only two selectmen were coming to the meeting and they just begged us to call an end to it.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Well, there is no perfect structure obviously.  And so we have the structure we have, and I think the feeling was to try and get the town engaged as actively as possible is the best way to go.  You know, we’ll see how it goes.  



You know, I think the rough estimates that Paul and I are using is that if every town builds its own waste water infrastructure and just goes along with blinders on, you are probably looking at around eight billion dollars.  If you regionalize and take advantage of all the cost savings that come from that, you probably cut that down to three billion.  So saving five billion dollars is real money.  



So there’s some pretty compelling costs numbers there.  Now, three is still a lot of money.  So we have to work with towns and figure out how to chop that up into bite size pieces so people don’t choke on the whole thing.  



But I think at the end of the day compliance with the Clean Water Act is required.  It’s been our mantra throughout the process that towns that continue to do planning and develop implementation plans and begin to do that work insulate themselves from any litigation and do better and certainly far better than towns that aren’t doing anything because eventually somebody is going to sue you.  



Eventually somebody is going to find you in violation of the Clean Waters Act and a judicially imposed solution will be more expensive, less flexible and more disruptive and less in keeping with your community character than whatever it is you come up with on your own. And so the best way to minimize that cost exposure is to continue to do the work necessary and put yourself in position.  



And so even if you are found in default and lose, the judge remedy is going to be implement your plan as opposed to - - because no judge is going to substitute their judgment for yours.  If you have a plan, you’ll be ordered to do it.  You’ll be put on a time plan to do it, but they are not going to come up with something entirely different than what you came up with.  So towns can best manage that cost exposure and risk to litigation by continuing to do their planning.  

As our friends in Chatham have found, it is never too late for somebody to come throw sand in the wheels.  So the best thing you can do is do as good a process as you can and look at things as legitimately as you can.  At some point you make a decision and you go down the road and you do something.  



Now, one thing I do want to leave you all with is that there is a lot of sort of sound and fury in the sense out there that there is some magic bullet, cheap way to do this that for some reason towns just won’t look at.  And that you are being led down this road of, you know, over building and, frankly, the County is sort of in the “big pipe” camp.  



And I will frankly tell you that nothing could be further from the truth.  Our whole orientation and I think the County’s whole orientation is to help towns do what they can to build with the least amount of infrastructure necessary to solve water quality problems that they are confronted with.  We talked a lot today about regionalization as away of doing that.  



But whether you go the regional route or you don’t go the regional route, we still feel pretty strongly in that the best way to serve the taxpayers is to understand what your water body needs are in terms of construction and to build only that which solves that problem and no more.  And anything other than that is a disservice.  



What that means at the end of the day is that you’ll need to look at large collection systems.  You’ll need to look at the role of smaller collection systems.  You’ll need to look at the role of on-site, whether it’s innovative nitrogen reducing technologies or just a continuation of just Title Five.  



And then in most communities some combination of each one of those should appear as their overall strategy.  And that anyone who says to you that you don’t need collection and treatment and you can do it through - - you can solve our waster water problem all in a backyard system is flat out wrong.  Okay.  It just doesn’t work.  



Anybody who says to you that no town should be doing a central treatment collection system and everybody should be doing smaller regional, sub-regional systems is similarly misinformed, well intentioned perhaps, but, frankly, misinformed.  The science is that some of our water bodies need between 80 and 100 percent of the nitrogen removed from the watershed.  



So that means not only do you have to treat it down to the lowest levels of technology, but you probably in some places can’t put it back in that watershed or even treat it, or you are going to violate the loading requirements.  If you treat the smaller systems - - part of the economic rationale of small systems is you are not moving water at long distances.  So you are treating it close to where it’s being generated and disposing close to where you are treating it.  



Well, if your heavy service of concentration of nitrogen is in a watershed that needs 100 percent removal of nitrogen and you treat it there and discharge it back into the ground in that location, you are not going to meet your water quality goal.  You need to move it somewhere and at that point the whole cost curve fall apart.  So anybody who tells you it has to be this and it has to be that has taken an advocates role.  And they are advocating for a position that isn’t necessarily born out by the facts.  



So be cautious if somebody says to you the only way we can solve this is through one system.  They are probably looking at things through a certain prism.  If somebody tells you they can solve it with no central system, they are looking at it because that’s what they believe.  And if they say only small systems could work, then they are taking a political view not a science based view.  



So I urge you to walk away with a healthy skepticism of anybody who says that it has to be this and it has to be that because the reality is it is somewhere in the middle.  And that is why it takes time, and that is why it is complicated and that is why it is difficult to come up with the right solution.

  

Because you got to look at if I do this part this way and this part that way, how do the numbers work out?  What does it do in terms of my water quality and what are my options here?  And it is an irrirative (sic) process.  And it’s hard, and it’s time consuming, and it requires you to talk to your neighbors.  And it’s difficult.  If it weren’t difficult, we would have figured it out already.  



So if you take away anything from this discussion, I really want you to take away this notion that nobody is hiding a silver bullet.  There isn’t one.  And nobody has a corner on the market for the solution.  There are fifteen towns on the Cape.  There is thirty-five different solutions out there that might be applicable to the situation.  



Anyone who says it is a one size fits all has drunk some Cool Aid that I wouldn’t listen to.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  You know, I would like to get back to the final report of the Cape Cod Water Protection Collaborative, which is really why I brought you in.  We brought you in because part of the review process was to report back to the Commissioner and to the Assembly in anticipation of needing an Ordinance to change the structure of the collaborative.  



I sat on the panel that set up this collaborative along with Commissioner Doherty and former Speaker Bernardo.  And the discussions we had before the end of that was that the makeup of the collaborative was leaning towards those fifteen towns because at that point they felt they needed the support to pass the Ordinance.  



In other words, if we didn’t put the towns in and give them a key role, we wouldn’t get this passed.  And it was awareness at that point that it may become unyielding in the future.  I mean there was a choice between a centralized collaborative, which would work effectively with clear lines of authority or simply spreading it out more politically to allow everybody to have a buy in.  



And I’m concerned and I know you are concerned also that there seems to be some bumps in the road between here and there.  For instance, the lines of authority between the Commissioners and you and also the power of the purse, meaning the Commissioner being the ones to disperse the funding in the past is an issue.  



And before we leave the table and decide not to submit an Ordinance I just wondered if you could say briefly if you feel you could overcome those issues in the nest few years without changing your actual structure.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  In a word, yes.  



I mean I think that there was a period of time where there was a transition between under the previous Board of Commissioners and the governing board that existed.  There has been greater budgetary oversight and control exercised, and I think appropriately so by the Commissioners, then there had been in the years preceded.  



You know, the governing board, I think, felt that they control the operating budget of the collaborative.  I think the Commissioners have again appropriately asserted as the executives of the County and that they have the ultimate authority once appropriated by you folks to deal with the day to day authorization of expenditures and that the collaborative governing board’s role is in providing recommendations to guide both policy deliberations and financial decisions.  


And although admittedly there was a tense period of adjustment to that change, you know, we have sort of adjusted to that and to think that it functions - - you know, my role is such I provide staff support to the governing board as well as staffing support to the Commissioners.  I don’t feel any inherent unworkable conflict between that.  There are, you know, occasional day to day, you know, where there is a little rub.  



But on balance, frankly, it’s not particularly an issue that’s burdensome or difficult for me in the way that I choose to operate and hasn’t really impacted an ability to function.  I think your characterization is pretty much my understanding in terms of the political art of getting votes to create the collaborative structure was what it was.  



And I think the review committee landed in a particular place, and I think sort of drew a conclusion about for a going forward basis ideally what was most responsive to the needs in the Cape.  And that recommendation generated a whole lot of good conversation, frankly.  I think it ran into the same general dynamic that you are confronted with when you first discussed the recommendation to create the collaborative.  



And so does it represent to some degree an adjustment to the political reality?  Yes, it does.  Is it unworkable?  No, I don’t think it is.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I just want to say that if you should in the future choose to diminish the role of the fifteen towns in the collaborative, you’ll have to do it through an Ordinance, and you’ll have to present it to us.  And then it’ll go through our representatives of the fifteen towns.  



So this was what I was alluding to.  So you might have a rough road in that regard.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  I think the general feeling was there was enough we could do if the orientation was placed based.  There was enough that we could do in terms of picking priority watersheds and demonstrating the ability of the County to play a constructive role in dealing with issues in a way they haven’t done so before.  


There was enough to be gained there that it wasn’t worth what would have clearly been a difficult political slog to change the structure with no assurance that one, it would happen and two, that you’d end up with such hard feelings on part of some of the towns that it would diminish your ability to provide a structure that would work effectively for the towns.  



At the end of the day, we need to work effectively with and for the towns because that’s who we are trying to help.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Well, we’ve taken quite a bit of your time.



Fred?



Mr. SCHILPP:  Thank you, Mr. Speaker.



Andrew, just one point and you’ve answered particularly in the ten minutes questions about or responding to a lot of the stories that are in the paper about all the towns and the difficulty they are having getting the system through without so much opposition.

 

When the collaborative was formed, one of the things I was aware of I thought  was the need to educate individuals, homeowners, taxpayers, and boards, and planning boards, and zoning boards and so forth about the problems in nitrogen unloading in the estuaries.  



There were a number of attempts, billboards and pieces sent out, and I know Orleans did a book, a blue page book - - is there a value to that continuing education for individuals to try to help with this problem?  Or is it beyond that so what we really are only talking about now is sewering or major system changes?



Mr. GOTLIEB:  No.  I think people have to understand what the nature of the problem is and what the realistic alternatives are to deal with it.  So it’s a person by person educational program.  



You know, the difficulty is, and I’ve spent a lot of time talking about this, do you do the sort of scatter shot across the Cape, higher level and try to get to as many people as possible approach, or do you work on a town by town basis as you see towns moving into position to take these issues on?  And at what point do you begin to focus on individual towns?  Do you focus on town meeting members?  Do you focus on your likely voter?  You know, where is your orientation?  And that varies by town.  



We attempted - - we have been working more at the broad scale level.  You know, between the flyers we’ve been distributing through the town clerks offices, and the newspaper publications, and the availability of both those on the website to try to do that scatter shot in the last several months. 

 

You know, as with Barnstable and some of the other towns is they have gotten closer to having a plan they could put forth to a town meeting or having a financing plan they are going to put in front of the voters, but they want a more hands on, town oriented support in providing information.  How do you do that?  



I mean, you could spend all day every day having that discussion with people and probably still not meet the need.  And so it’s really a question of, you know, what resources you have and what’s the best way to deploy them to get that.  I think part of the way we are short circuiting that is a lot of the public discussion isn’t on the positive side, but it’s on the negative side.  



People are saying you cooked the books on your financing plan.  You tilted the science.  You biased the alternatives analysis towards one particular outcome.  And that’s why the municipal outreach piece as proposed in this year’s budget is attempting to give the towns the information to short circuit that.  So that the negative thing about whichever one people glom onto doesn’t become viral and take a life of its own so you can actually spend time talking about the substance.  



And I hear from people - - I think we did that publication and we did about 100,000 of the brochures.  I think they are pretty much gone at this point.  If people were to say it makes sense and it was useful and we would like to see more - - the science doesn’t change - - we can reprint the thing.  Again, I don’t have any plans to do that now, but we could do that.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I think we have spent a good part of an hour on this.  I think we have got the information that we need and that the Commissioners are not recommending - -



Mr. GOTLIEB:  They are not recommending any Ordinance change right now.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  You’ve fulfilled your duty to report back to the Assembly so thank you very much.


Mr. GOTLIEB:  Thank you for having me.  I’ll be back at budget time.



(Laughter.)



Speaker BERGSTROM:  You gave a broad overview.  I appreciate it and thank you for participating in this forum and also in the individual towns who have supported their program.  I think that is very important.



Mr. GOTLIEB:  Thank you.

Communications from Public Officials

Communications from Chair Fred Gaechter, Charter Review Committee



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  In the Communications from Public Officials, I am going to recognize a particular public official, who is sitting in the back and who has chaired our County Charter Review.  If you don’t mind, Fred, because I’m going to introduce an Ordinance that’s going to change the timeline of - - a Resolution that’s going to change the timeline of the County Review.  And so I’m asking Fred to give us a quick summary and justification of that.



Mr. GAECHTER:  Thank you.  As you know, I’ve been chairing since October, the Chairman of the Charter Review Committee.  We have four members from your body that are on it; Teresa, Leo, Charlotte and Ron.



We have been working diligently and through our discussion we determined that we really need some more time.  October to April was not enough time to look at a Charter that really has not been revised for ten years.   And we think that to do an adequate enough and an appropriate job we need to have some more outreach and time to have that outreach.  And we need some more time to deliberate.  



So there is a lot of “Whereas” statements in the resolution.  I don’t want to spend a lot of time on this.  Our committee is unanimous in asking that you provide to us this additional time.  We’d also like to ask if the procedures allow if you could vote on this tonight because we are coming to the conclusion of our lifeline of the current resolution.  



And in order to continue our work we really need to proceed and to delay a couple of weeks is really going to hamper our ability to proceed.  So I don’t want to take up a lot of time.  The resolution speaks for itself, but I’d be glad to answer any questions.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I’ll just mention one little comment.  There seems to be a glitch in the process because a charter commission was supposed to be set up in the years divisible by five, like 2010.  I mean, it’s given a certain timeline to make its recommendations.  

However, those of you who remember the previous charter review they actually ran afoul of the Secretary of the Commonwealth’s timeline to get on the ballot, which is early like in May.  So basically you’re creating a committee in January 1st and it has to review it and make recommendations for the ballot.  



If there are to be some changes in November, they have to make those recommendations by May, or even earlier.  We have traditionally, according to Diane, set up a committee earlier in 2009, you know, technically it was supposed to be set up.  So, you know, we discussed this and I don’t know if Leo or Teresa have anything to say about it, or Charlotte, but technically it was supposed to be set up.  



And so we discussed this and I don’t know if Leo or Teresa have anything to say, or Charlotte, but - - and, you know, quite frankly, it took longer than everybody expected.  We had legal questions that we submitted to County Counsel.  It took a while for those legal questions to come back.  And, you know, we were going through the review so I feel badly for Fred, who has done a tremendous job as chairman.  



But in dealing with eight or nine other people, four of whom are Delegates and one a County Commissioner, turned out to be a more difficult task than you expected.



Mr. GAECHTER:  I used to have a lot more hair or so I’ve been told.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Do any people have any questions for Fred about this?



Leo?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  The only thing I would like to add is as a member of the committee I’ll tell my fellow Assembly members here that we’ve had a great deal of interest in this, which to me is wonderful.  We had the Cape Cod Business Roundtable and the League of Women Voters.  I think the Association of the Selectmen’s Association has had a lot of comments on it.



Mr. GAECHTER:  Chamber of Commerce.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Chamber of Commerce.  And as our Chair said, the timeframe just doesn’t seem to workout correctly.  I think if you have a chance to read the resolution, it does say that we are going to attempt to get something back by April.  So we can make maybe something this November, but we are hoping to really continue to look at this to really get some public input prior to coming through with a recommendation.  



Because the way the timeframe is right now if we were to come to a recommendation to this board in April, we’d have to vote on it and then basically in June that’s it.  And it doesn’t really get a any public - - although they see it and hear it, they don’t get a chance to tweak it because it has to go directly to the ballot.  



In other words, it has to be ballot ready sometime by June 1st and that just doesn’t make sense.  It’s just not going to work.  So as our chairman said the committee has unanimously asked that the timeframe be expanded.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  Anything else on this?



Fred?



Mr. SCHILPP:  I just have one question about one of the “whereas.”  There have been no charter changes in the last ten years.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  It was never placed.  When we submitted it to be placed on the ballot, and Diane can correct me if I am wrong, it had actually missed the timeframe.  So even though there was an extensive review done and recommendations made, those recommendations that require an affirmative vote by the citizens of Cape Cod did not get on the ballot.  



I think we had difficulties with the previous incarnation.  It had something to do with the Sheriff and the legislators, but I’m not going to go there because that’s way back eons ago.  Okay.  Fred, we are going to bring this up, and we’ll see if we are ready to act on it today or not.  



Thank you very much.  



Okay. Wait a minute.  Tom?



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  Thank you, Mr. Speaker.



Just for clarity, I just want to make sure that on the appropriateness of us taking action.  This wasn’t on the Calendar of Business.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Right.



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  And I just want to make sure that this is something that’s going to be appropriate.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Well, I already asked that question earlier in the meeting when we came to the amending the Calendar of Business, and I’ll go back to our parliamentarian and see what she says.



Ms. THOMPSON:  Well, Mr. Speaker, you need to submit the proposed resolution to the Assembly first, which is why it couldn’t have been added to the Calendar at that time.  So this resolution has not formally been submitted to the Assembly as of yet.  



So my understanding is that when you go into the - - when the Assembly convenes under Reports to Committees, the Speaker will submit this proposed resolution.  So that’s why it’s not showing on the Calendar at this point in time.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Yes.  I was of the opinion of you, Tom, that I had to accede to a higher authority.



Leo?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  I’m kind of in a very peculiar situation here because, although I voted and was certainly in favor of this resolution coming forward from the subcommittee, I did state that I have had issues as Assembly members sitting here with resolutions coming forward and then voting on them on the same day.  



So now I am in a peculiar place because here I am voting to bring one forward.  And I guess I am going to have to stand with my principles, and I probably will not vote for it if it’s brought forward to vote for but just because I don’t believe that that’s the way the process should be.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Well, if I could interrupt for a minute.  There will be two votes.  The first question to be brought before the Assembly is whether or not we should bring this up and only if we get an affirmative vote on that will we actually put the resolution to a vote.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  The only thing I would ask just before we do convene is that if anybody has a huge problem with this that maybe we could discuss it either now or whatever so we know.  Because then our committee can go and if it does no get voted today, at least we will know.  



It’s a procedural thing, and we are waiting to make sure the public is aware of it in case someone does want to come forward and testify the next time we meet on it or not.  I know it’s not a huge thing, but I guess it’s just a procedural thing.  As most of you know, I have complained about that situation in the past.  So I have to keep in line with my beliefs.

Communications from Members of the Public



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Any other further comment on this process?  



Hearing none, do we have any Communications from the members of the public?  

Assembly Convenes



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Now, the Assembly will now convene, and we will begin with reports of committees.  



John, you met today.

Reports of Committees

Standing Committee on Finance



Mr. OHMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Speaker.



The Finance Committee met today to review, within a public hearing, an Ordinance 10-2.  It consists of three sections.  I’m sure everyone has had a chance to look at it.  The Finance Committee had no problem with Sections 2 or 3 mainly because they were enterprise funds that were not going to affect the budget at all.  It is money in and money out.  



That was regarding $20,347 from Section 2 for a septic betterment program.  They are hiring another secretary to do billing.  And once again, it’ll not affect the County budget, per se.  Section 3 is also an enterprise fund, where the dredge needs some repairs.  So the Finance Committee had no issues with Sections 2 or 3.  



However, that was not the case with Section 1.  Section 1, we went through it piece meal.  There is quite a few.  There is probably eight or nine, and I can go through them quickly.  There is a computer equipment problem where the County actually had their e-mail and other services breakdown over the course of four days.  The service had broken down, and there was an emergency repair for $10,500.  



The second one is the old jail is now going to be part of the Health Department.  We are going to move it up there this week.  And they need some wiring and technology upgrades for a total of 12,500.  The third one is for electricity issues.  One is for DCI for 10,000.  We are going to keep DCI open for Open Cape.  I hope that meets with the satisfaction.  And that’s going to cost another $10,391.  



The second on the County services is for the old jail.  Once again, we are going to keep that open and heated for the Health Department at 11,500.  And there was an under budgeted item for children’s coats for $2,000.  So those are the facility stuff for total of $23,891. 

 

Where the real debate came about was an assessing study and what the commissioners are asking for is to take out of statutory reserve $50,000 to have a regional study on assessing that was promulgated by the fact that three of the Lower Cape towns and perhaps as many as five of the Lower Cape towns, and Yarmouth as well, asked if we would look into regional assessing.  



We took issue with that in regards to it is too big and too wide a scope at this time.  So we asked quite specifically what the scope would be, and we were not convinced that it’s time to spend that $50,000 out of statutory reserves.  And we came up with a recommendation that we gave them a positive opinion that we should be doing regional studies, but until it came up with a more narrow and focused scope on what that study would be we were not willing to allocate $50,000 out of our statutory reserves at this moment in time.  



The Sheriff’s audit I think is a very well spent $10,000.  That’s not to exceed $10,000.  We want to bring in an auditor.  As we are divorcing from the Sheriff finally, we need to make sure there is nothing hidden that is going to cost us money.  As we know, it’s been a very difficult cost regarding the Sheriff.  Some were not anticipated.  



And then there were some old telephone bills and other charges for another $10,540.  So what the Finance Committee recommended on a four to zero vote was to recommend 10-02 as amended by not funding the $50,000 for a total of $167,778.



Ms. TAYLOR:  We are not voting on that today.



Mr. OHMAN:  No.  That was what we recommended.  I would like you look it over.  I think we will ask that that be voted on the 17th of March.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  We are going to be up against it now because the 17th of March is when we open up our budget discussion on the same day.  Remember we talked about how we are going to have the budget submitted to us.  



I mean, certainly I have put that time aside, but I just want to make people aware of that so you don’t just say, Well, we’ll put it off for the 17th.  I just want you to be aware that the 17th is a major plate.  The same will be true for this Ordinance we’ve talked about here, not that we can’t work on two things at the same time.

Julia?



Ms. TAYLOR:  As a former member of the Finance Committee, I do think you are all going in the right direction.  These other spendings are part of existing programs and part of repairs and ongoing overruns or costs.  And as much as we might support, and I think will and could support in the budget, a regional program.  I just don’t think it should come forward this way from the reserves.  



But I won’t be here on the 17th.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I just want to say that the Ordinance I assume will be submitted to us with a recommendation from the Finance Committee to alter it or amend it.



Mr. OHMAN:  We are recommending the Ordinance as amended.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  And who submitted this?



Mr. OHMAN:  The County Commissioners.



Ms. THOMPSON:  There will be a report, if I may, Mr. Speaker, that gives the minutes of what took place at the public hearing that was held this afternoon and then the recommendation of the Finance Committee.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I guess I’m just trying to make it clear that you can’t amend, you can’t amend, you can’t amend the Ordinance until it’s actually placed before the Assembly.



Mr. OHMAN:  We are recommending to the Assembly that they approve our amended Ordinance - - 



Speaker BERGSTROM:  And you’ll submit that on the 17th of March.



Mr. OHMAN:  Personally, I won’t be here on the 17th of March.  But my vice-chair has kindly considered to do that for me, and she is more than capable.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I just want to make sure that we don’t get - - we don’t get the amended version.  So basically we’ll get the Ordinance.  We’ll get the amendment, and then we’ll vote on the amendment and then vote on the Ordinance.



Mr. OHMAN:  But I got a sense - - we did have a very strong four to zero vote that we do not recommend these specifics 001-2602 of that Ordinance.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Paul?



Mr. PILCHER:  I came in a little late of the hearing, but my question is first of all, looking at the financial report at the end of January.  The figure that jumped out at me - - I gathered when you discussed  it - - was of fringe benefits, which seems to be almost spent up after seven months.  I wonder if there was an explanation as to why that was?  And then I have a follow up question.



Mr. OHMAN:  That is an excellent question.  I presented that actually not during the public hearing because we were to consider the Ordinance, but I did, as well as Delegate Lynch from Barnstable, presented that question to Mr. Zielinski.  And he was not able to give us specific reasons why all of it was spent down.  Some of it was the almost $500,000 in the Sheriff’s Retirement that we had to fund because if we didn’t complete that dissolution of - - the Sheriffs only part of County government until January 1st.  



The other decision I think was a part of that it was not aware of how much was left unexpended.  Joanne, his assistant treasurer, is coming up with numbers for us, and he said he will get back to us today.



Mr. PILCHER:  The other is the analysis I was doing of these figures.  If they had been spent - - if the full seven months worth had been spent, that’s about 58 percent of the budget that should’ve been spent.  And even with that figure that figure is about 55 percent.  So the County is coming in under budget even with that overrun.  



And I listened to the discussion and support the idea of waiting to fund the assessment study.  However, I do recall that last year during budget hearings that people said if we are coming in under budget, and if you come back to us with some specific plans vis-à-vis regional initiatives particularly ones that have been asked for it by the town, which we’ve had, then we would consider them.  



I heard members of this Assembly make those very statements. So I would be reluctant to let it stand that it’s just okay to let this go from the budget and not fund anything for 2011.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Tom?



Mr. LYNCH:  Two comments.  First, I did ask Mark about the 4 to 500,000 dollar problem, and what I believe he said was that he felt we had over budgeted in fringe benefits.  He said about 200,000 out of that, and he’s asking Finance to go over all the fringe benefits so they can make up another 200,000 to cover this 400,000 problem.  



And it concerns me that we have that kind of wiggle room in the budget because last year’s budget was hard fought over increased taxes, the new programs that we had.  And we made some tough choices that we might have made differently had we know there was that kind of wiggle room.  And I almost feel that the supplemental budget should follow the regular budget.



Our debate on the 2011 - - for instance, we are taking some of the 10 percent set aside for what the Commissioner do, you know, what they have this year.  Should that spent - - how should we be doing that deficit.  I just want to make one comment on the regionalization.  The issue of the assessing services we all agree that that seems to be an area that there has been uniform discussion from big towns to small towns about that.  



And the point was rather than hire a consultant to come in and say how should this happen, let’s learn from past experience of why we ask the assessors themselves what you are looking for so you can narrow that scope.  So you don’t put an RFP out that says that we are asking for X, Y and Z, and then the very folks that you are trying to serve want to A, B, and C done.  



And the lesson for me is when the County did a 40 to 50,000 dollar spending on the Housing Authority.  They didn’t ask the housing authorities what they wanted.  I don’t think there’s a single savings that’s been achieved from that particular study.  They could have achieved it by simply convening a work group of that group there.  They talked for a long time about how to save money, consolidate, increase capacity, and things like that.

  

I think you’ll see a support for a regional study, but I think it comes from the bottom up not from the County down.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Well, I sincerely hope that the Assembly will come to one mind on this simply because as you can tell it’s an issue that could call for a great deal of debate and, you know, we don’t want to burden ourselves too much at our next meeting.  We’ve had a little bit of a discussion here so maybe when we discuss this, we can come to a decision.  



So where are we now?  Any other committee reports?



George?

Standing Committee on Health and Human Services



Mr. BRYANT:  Barnstable County Health and Human Services Advisory Council met last Thursday.  There were two presentations.  One was by the regional network to end homelessness and Alan Troudat was the coordinator who spoke.  And the number that Sheila was looking for earlier about housing through transportation, 24-7 access number, is 1-888-656-2333.

  

The other was a presentation by one of the AmeriCorps people, Katy Mueller.  She’s been involved with the Cape Cod Foundation to help people who are interested in volunteering connect with non-profits.  She will be publicizing that more.

Other Business

Submission of Proposed Resolution 10-01:  to extend the timeframe for the Charter Review Committee to complete its work to December 31, 2010



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  No further reports by committees.  I will now under Other Business submit proposed resolution 10-01, which you should have in front of you in your packets.  Do we all have a copy of that?  



I will open it up to discussion as to whether the Assembly is prepared to vote on this or not prepared to vote on this.  So do you want to go forward?

Fred?



Mr. SCHILLP:  Yes, Mr. Speaker.



I agree in general with Leo’s reservations, but I think in this case given the amount of time and effort that’s been put into the meeting two weeks from now, I think it would be wise to move this aside and vote on it now.



Speaker BERSTROM:  Do you want to make a motion on it?

Motion to Vote on Proposed Resolution 10-01: to extend the timeframe for the Charter Review Committee to complete its work to December 31, 2010



Mr. SCHILPP:  I make a motion that we vote on the proposed resolution 10-01 and I recommend adoption.



Mr. KANAGA:  Second.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Any further comment on this?  Leo already has made his comment so we know where he stands.  All right.  It calls for a vote.



Mr. LYNCH:  Discussion on the resolution.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I’m sorry.  I didn’t see you, Tom.



Mr. LYNCH:  On the timing on the vote with respect to the original timeline in the charter, the Commission did return a report that would go before the voters in 2010, and this delays it for two more years to 2012.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  There are some recommendations that could be made.  For instance, under recommendation just take the personnel section out of there, which doesn’t necessarily have to be in the charter but simply adopted by resolution or ordinance.  



House cleaning stuff could be done, but any major structural changes to the makeup of the Board of County Commissioners has become an issue that is going to have to be brought out to the broader community.  And as you heard Fred Gaechter say, they would already be contacted.  Remember, we set up the Ordinance using the previous Ordinance.  



And since then a lot of voices on the Cape have come to us and said first of all, they wanted to be part of the process of setting up the Ordinance.  We couldn’t do that without amending the Ordinance.  But failing that, we wanted a voice at the table to do presentations.  We paralleled it to the 20th Century task force, which if you remember is a process that took a couple of years.  



Unfortunately, next June 1st is much too fast.  January and February of 2012 may be too long.  Those are the restrictions we work under given the timeframe.

Leo?



Mr. CAKOUNES:  The meeting we just had - - the subcommittee just met Monday.  And it was basically our discussion there to proceed with bringing some recommendations forward for the April   deadline.  



So that the full committee here would be able to look at certain recommendations, but there are other things that are just going to take too   much - - or we are looking for some public input and are going to take too much time, and we did not feel we were going to be able to make those recommendations to make the deadline.  And then there were some of us who didn’t think it was proper without getting some public input first.  



Because again, once you guys get in here and you vote on it after June 1st the public can’t change it, and now it becomes a document that goes to vote, and they didn’t have a chance to tweak and change.  I think if you vote for this, what’s going to happen is you are going to see two things happen.  One is the committee is gong to continue to come forward with some recommendations that can be made.  



As the Speaker said, one of them that we didn’t vote on Monday is the personnel bylaw section, which some of us feel doesn’t really belong in the charter.  Things like that will still come forward but we will continue throughout the summer to work on other major changes.



Mr. PILCHER:  Have we even voted yet on whether to even put this resolution on the table?



Speaker BERGSTROM:  No.



Mr. PILCHER:  Because we seem to be discussing the resolution.



Mr. CAKOUNES:  Sorry.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I agree with you.



Ms. THOMPSON:  There is a motion to adopt it and there is a second.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I’ve got a motion to adopt and a second.  That’s what we are discussing.  I’ll allow little latitude.  So we will now vote on the motion to vote on the resolution.  



Do you understand that?



Ms. STRIEBEL: We are voting on a motion to pass the resolution.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.



Mr. PILCHER:  Point of order.  We have not yet voted on whether to bring the resolution forward.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Yes.  That’s what we are doing.



Mr. PILCHER:  Thank you.



Ms. THOMPSON:  If I may, just to make it clear.  It’s my understanding that there was a consensus of the Delegates.  The Speaker did not hear any opposition about not bringing this forward.  Therefore, Delegate Schilpp made a motion to adopt this proposed resolution 10-01, and then there was a second by Delegate Kanaga.  So that’s what’s before the Assembly right now.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  Was that what your actual intention was?  You moved the actual resolution.  



Mr. SCHILPP:  Yes.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  So we are going to lose Leo on this, that’s fine.  All right.  In that case, it’s been moved and seconded, and I have no choice but to call for a vote.



Mr. Keyes.



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  Thank you, Speaker Bergstrom.



It sounds like the process that we are going through with the charter change is inadequate.  We are talking about a short period of time and looking at what Attorney Troy has sent back to us these are really complicated issues that are being brought forward, real structural changes.  



Now, to here that this Charter Review Committee is going to have some things ready for April and continue on with their work, that sounds rushed to me.  



Is there a possibility to revise our procedure to make this a process that’s more appropriate to get the scope of this work done instead of breaking up half of it for April, or a piece of it for April, which I think sounds rushed, and I think it might do it a disservice?   And then continue the work for the rest of the year and bring it forward in two years.  



The whole thing sounds as if the process isn’t working.



Ms. STRIEBEL:  Mr. Chairman, I would move that we suspend the rules so that Mr. Gaechter can speak again.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Okay.  I second that.  



All in favor say “Aye.”



DELEGATES:  “Aye.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Opposed?



(No response.)



Speaker BERGSTROM:  You’ve been unmuzzled.



Mr. GAECHTER:  To answer Thomas Keyes’s point, the two things we are considering to bring forward are really procedural.  One of them is the point you are bringing up because it came up as you know at the CCSCA meeting.  



The first is a kind of a procedural thing, a house keeping regard, as Leo mentioned.  There is a lot of personnel practices that we just want to move from the charter into personnel bylaws.  It’s a pretty basic plan.  The other is we are looking at a potential recommendation to help ourselves and to assist the Assembly in future issues with regard to the charter of what should the process of the Charter Review Committee be.  



And we think we’ve heard a lot of comments on that as you know again from the CCSCA that we are ready to put that on the table for your consideration, the public consideration now so that if you extend our lifeline, we will have procedures in place that everybody has agreed to.  



If we wait until two years from now then it’s not going to be us to progress our work.  And that’s why we’d like to bring it forward now.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  And I’d like to point out, and I don’t want to throw a monkey wrench in here, but one of the provisions in the charter review is ultimately it go before the Commissioners and the Assembly, which is unlike some other projects.  If you recommend major changes, you have to get passed those people who are going to directly be affected by the major changes in order to get to the legislation.  



In other words, if you say I want to eliminate all the County Commissioners, you have to get the County Commissioners to agree with you.  Unlike other charters in other towns - - I mean, it’s not a deal breaker, but it’s one of the things that we would look at.  I still have a vote on a motion on the floor, and I still have a second so I still have to call for a vote.



Ms. THOMPSON:  May I say one thing?  I’m urging the current Charter Review Committee to take a look at the recommendations that were made in 2005, and there are Delegates who are still sitting on this Assembly who put in a lot of time and effort and had recommendations submitted in 2005.  



So the recommendations that I’m suggestion the current Charter Review Committee take a look at are really more procedural as well.  They are not substantive issues, but they are issues that will help this body function a little more smoothly.  And I’m hoping you’ll see those recommendations before you.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Well, let’s vote.



Ms. THOMPSON:  We’ll try again.

Roll Call Vote on Proposed Resolution 10-01: to extend the timeframe for the Charter Review Committee to complete its work to December 31, 2010.
Voting Yes (87.03%): Ronald Bergstrom (2.98% - Chatham), George Bryant (1.54% - Provincetown), Christopher Kanaga (2.85% - Orleans), Thomas Keyes (9.06% - Sandwich), Marcia King (5.83% - Mashpee), Thomas Lynch (21.52% - Barnstable), Teresa Martin (2.45% - Eastham), Paul Pilcher (1.24% - Wellfleet), Fred Schilpp (0.94 – Truro), Charlotte  B. Striebel (11.16% - Yarmouth), and Julia C. Taylor (14.70% - Falmouth)

Voting No (12.76%): Leo Cakounes (5.57% - Harwich) and John Ohman (7.19% - Dennis) 
Absent (12.97%): Richard Anderson (8.43% - Bourne) and Anthony Scalese (4.54% - Brewster) (Mr. Anderson left at 5:25 p.m. and Mr. Scalese left at 5:28 p.m.)



Ms. THOMPSON:  Mr. Speaker, Proposed Resolution 10-01 passes with 74.27 percent of the Delegates voting “yes,” and 12.76 percent of the Delegates voting “no.”

Whereupon, it was moved, seconded, and by a roll call vote with 74.27% voting yes and 12.76% voting no; VOTED: not to adopt Proposed Resolution 10-01: to extend the timeframe for the Charter Review Committee to complete its work to December 31, 2010.


Speaker BERGSTROM:  Mr. Gaechter, unfortunately you have just signed on for an indefinite term.



Mr. GAECHTER:  Is that in the resolution?



Speaker BERSTROM:  It’s there.



(Laughter.)



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Anything under other Business to be brought before the Assembly?



In that case - -

Report from the Clerk



Ms. THOMPSON:  Could we go back to the report of the Clerk?



Speaker BERGSTROM:  I’m sorry.



(Laughter.)

Assembly’s FY 2011 Budget Meeting Schedule



Ms. THOMPSON:  We missed that but that’s quite all right.  I have just a couple of quick things.  The schedule for budget review has been finalized at least as far as committees are concerned.  And this will go out to the department managers tomorrow.  Hopefully, because of the short timeframe everything will move forward very quickly.

Election Information



Ms. THOMPSON:  I was asked by a Delegate to get information about the election for the next session of the Delegates.  And that information is that papers will be available for the Assembly of Delegates at the end of April.  July 20th - - I am giving approximate dates,  Secretary Galvin’s office said these are tentative but close to being firm,  so July 20th will be the deadline for submitting papers to your town clerk.  August 17th they are required to be back at the County clerk and August 24th they should be in Secretary Galvin’s office.  So that is all the information that I have.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  We’ll try again.



Deputy Speaker KEYES:  Mr. Speaker, move to adjourn.



Ms. KING:  Second.



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Move has been seconded.



All in favor say “Aye.”



DELEGATES:  “Aye.”



Speaker BERGSTROM:  Opposed?



(No response.)

Whereupon, it was moved, seconded and voted to adjourn the Assembly of Delegates meeting at 6:25 p.m.

                                                    

Respectfully submitted by:







   




Diane C. Thompson, Clerk
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